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PROCEEDINGS
Whereupon,
JOHN F, GALLAGHER
was called as a witness and, having first been duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:
EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE PLAINTIFF
BY MR. LESAR:
o Would you begin by stating your experience with the |
FBI, how long you were employed, when you retired, and what |
your areas of expertise were when you were with the FBI? i
A I joined the FBI after I got out of the service
in 1946.
Prom 1946 to 1975 I was employed by the FBI,
primarily in the laboratory as a special agent. i
Q Pardon me. |
You resigned in 19757
A Yes.
Q When? i
A January. a

Q And what areas were you qualified in as an expert?

A I was qualified in the areas of instrument analysis.

Q What instruments?

A Well, the spectrophotometer, the spectrograph, the

e



!
% X-ray defraction, spectrometer, the neutron activation
analysis and spark source mass spectrography.

Q Were you also trained in ballistics?

A No.

Q Did you perform microscopic examination of items
of evidence?

A Yes, about every piece of evidence that comes into
our unit --

Q Could you speak up a little?

A About every peice of evidence that came into our

section was at first subjected to mecroscopic examination,

; That's not universally true, but generally.

Q What section of the FBI were you assigned to in
19732

A The spectrographic unit.

Q Who was your immediate supervisor?

|

i A Special Agent Roy Jevons.

! Q What would have been the relationship between you
|

and Mr. Robert Frazier?

A He was a special agent examiner in the fire arms

unit of physics and chemistry section.

| Q Fin‘o

I am going to try and accommodate Mr, Johnson and
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direct to you some gquestions that will enable us to dispose
of some of the items of evidence that he has brought here
from the National Archives.

I would like to know whether or not you made any
examination of a curbstone removed from Dealey Plaza which
was alleged to have been struck by a bullet.

A I have no recollection of doing that examination.

o You made no microscopic examination of it?

A I don't think I examined any curbstone from some
plaza that you ﬁ;ntioned.

Q Dealey Plaza.

A I don't think I examined the curbstone.

Q Could I ask you to step over here and take a look
at this curbstone?

Did you ever see this curbstone before?

A I don't recall seeing that curbstone.
Q Do you notice anything on that curbstone that
would appear to you to be made by a bullet or fragment of

bullet?

A I could not make a judgment like that just looking

at it.

Q2 What would you have to do?

A I would have to thoroughly examine it, microscopically

|

|
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and instrumental analysis.

@

Fine.

Do you know whether or not any instrumental

analysis was made of that curbstone?

A
Q

A

Q

I do not know that of my own knowledge.
You made no spectrographic analysis of that?
No.

Did you ever see any spectrographic -- report of

spectrographic analysis made of that curbstone?

A

Q

I did not.

Do you know whether or not that curbstone was

ever subjected to the neutron activation analysis?

A

P 2 pF P

Q

I am sure it wasn't.

pid you conduct the neutron activation analyses?
Yes, I did.

All of them?

I don't understand what you mean by all of them,

All of those items which were examined by neutron

activation analysis with respect to the assassination of

President Kennedy.

A

As far as I know I did, with the help, of course,

of Oak Ridge National Laboratory.

Q

I want to pass you an exhibit which we have
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identified for the purposes of these depositions as
Shaneyfelt Exhibit No. 2 and ask you whether or not you
have ever seen that before?

A I don't recall seeing this.

Q Do you recognize the handwriting on 1¢?

A I am not a handwriting expert.

Q Could it have been done by Mr. Heilman?

A It could have been.

Q Who else was working there at the time?

A Special Agent Fred Edwards and Special Agent
Heilman and myself and Special Agent Heidberger.

Q Were you all co-equals or was any one of you
senior to the other or in a superior position of rank?

A We were all special agents, FBI; and we were
assigned to the laboratory.

Q Customarily if one of you prepared a report on a
spectrographic examination made, would it have been
circulated among the other members —-- let's deal with the
case of the assassination of President Kennedy.

A Customarily it wouldn't.

Now, whether it was on occasion or not, I don't
recall.

Q With respect to the assassination of President

T P e e
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|| Kennedy in particular?

h A I am sure it wasn't on all occasions.
I am sure there are occasions when we were all |
around.
r It wouldn't be circulated for initials or anything ‘
| like that. |
I Q Did you have occasion to examine the President's
! tie?

A I saw the President's clothing, but I do not
think I examined it,
That's my recollection now; I don't think I
examined it.
Q Do you recall whether or not you made any

spectrographic analysis of the items of the President's

clothing?
| A I do not recall at this time. |
I do not recall.

‘ i
I Q Mr., Johnson, do you have those photographs again?

\ Excuse me.
{ to you with respect to the curbstone,

‘ Mr, Gallagher, I wanted to direct one more question
|
|

& If you would step over to it again, I would like

you to indicate to me if you see any place on that curbstone
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from which a spectrographic sample could have been taken.

A

It would be impossible for me, just looking at it,

to tell you that.

@

I direct your attention to this area here which has

been testified to by Mr. Shaneyfelt as the mark referred to

in reports, subjected to examination to determine whether or

not a bullet had struck it.

Do you see any place in that area where a

spectrographic sample was removed?

A

*

I see places where it is possible.

Could you point them out to me?

Along the bottom.

The bottom edge of that mark?

Yes.

Thank you. That's all.

Now, Mr. Johnson has two photographs of a tie.

The first one that I will ask him to show you is a

view of the tie taken from the front side of the tie.

Can you see a nick on that tie?
Yes, I do.

What is the location of the nick?
About halfway up on the photograph.

With respect to the margins of the tie, sides of
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the tie, is it in the center, sides, which side?

A As I am looking at the tie here, it's a little to
the left, about halfway up.

Q On the right side of the tie as worn by the
President?

A It would be on the right side as worn by the
President, yes.

Q Is there a sample -- an area where a sample has
been removed for spectrographic analysis?

A I can't make a judgment on that from the photo-
graph.

Q You do not recall removing a sample for spectro-

graphic analysis?

A I do not recall removing a sample.
Q Mr. Johnson, would you show him the second tie
photograph?

This is the side taken from the back.
Do you see any nick present on that view of the
back side of the tie?
A There is none that's apparent to the naked eye.
Q Fine.
Mr. Johnson, you have some photographs there of

the President's shirt collar, I believe.

M T T



You have another one, I think, that shows the tears.
: Yes.
! Would you show him that.
L Would you describe that photograph? What does it
!
H say on the back of back of the photograph?

A The photograph bears the label, Collar of Bhirt

E from --
|
ﬁ MR. JOHNSON: From back to front.
ﬁ THE WITNESS: Of Shirt from back to front.
BY MR. LESAR:
| Q Do you see any holes or tears in the collar area.
A Yes, I do.
! Q Do those holes overlap?
If you button that shirt collar, would the holes
overlap?

orient yourself with respect to the stripe on the

shirt; does it appear that one hole or tear is higher on the

shirt than another?

& Do you see any area there where a spectrographic

sample was taken for analysis?

A I cannot make that judgment.

\ A I wouldn't want to make a judgment on that.
|
|

Q Do you remember making any spectrographic analysis

[HOVER REPORTING i1 INE
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of the President's shirt collar?
A I do not recall making an examination.
MR. LESAR: Mr. Johnson, did you bring CE-3997? {
MR, JOHUNSON: Yes, I did.

BY MR. LESAR:

Q2 Did you have occasion to examine that bullet which
is CE-3997?

A I believe I did.

Q What sort of examination did you make of it?

A I uxamlned the lead in this particular bullet.

Q You examined the lead only?

A I believe so.

Q Do you see an area there where a sample was taken

for spectrographic analysis?

A Well, on the bottom here there is an indentation
which could indicate the area where a sample was taken,

Q Is there any place else on that missile from which
it appears a spectrographic sample may have been taken?

A It's very difficult for me to make a judyment
whether it was taken from this place or not or whether it wasi
in there from other events. '

Q Do you recall whether or not any spectrographic

analysis was done on the jacket of the bullet?
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(| A I don't recall.

Q Wouldn't you customarily make a spectorgraphic

examination of the jacket?

t A You mean routinely?

! Q Yes.
ii A No. |
%i Q Under what circumstances would you do it?

i

A If we thought it would contribute to the investiga-
& tion.
b Q Are yéu familiar with the history of that bullet or |
| the history that the Warren Commission attributed to that
bullet?
i A If my recollection is correct, this is the pristine
bullet.

Q Sometimes referred to as the virtually pristine
bullet.

A That's my only recollection of that.

I think it was found near the body of the President,

Q Do you recall what wounds it is alleged to have |

inflicted upon the President?

A No.

Q Are you familiar with the autopsy panel report?

H A No, I am not.
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Q You are not familiar with that.
At the time that you --

You did conduct some examinations on that bullet,

-did you not?

A It is my recollection that I did.

Q What were those examinations?

A I think I conducted spectrographic and neutron
activation analysis of some of the fragments.

Q At the time that you did that, what reports did
you have available to you?

Do you recall any reports that you had available
to you at that time?

A I had a laboratory work sheet which listed the
specimens and gave them a number that would be carried in
the FBI laboratory to identify that.

Q I will just ask a few more questions about these
exhibits and then we can break for lunch.

Mr. Johnson, I believe you have a picture of the
enlargement of the collar area and the back of the shirt.

Mr. Gallagher can read what the back of that
photograph says.

A Ingide of back of shirt,

Q All right.
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Is there a hole in that photograph of that shirt?
There is a hole.

Does it appear that spectrographic samples have

been removed from that?

A

2

I have no way of telling.

Does it appear that there is any place on that

hole where the material has been cut rather than damaged by

a bullet?
A
graph.
g
A
A
analysis?
A

cheek and

Q

A

from that

I can't make a judgment like that from a photo- 1

What did you analyze?
What did I analyze?

Specifically and by means of the neutron activation

Paraffin 1ifts which were taken from Oswald's

hands. I analyzed those lifts for primary residua.!
I analyzed fragments of lead. |
With respect to this shirt?

I don't recall analyzing any fragments of .lead

shirt because, actually, I don't know whether there

were fragments of lead on that shirt or not.

e

Do you recall analyzing that shirt to determine

whether or not there were traces of copper on it?

S AT 1 = PO A R SR ILER T IR TN TNE PERITIT
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A I do not recall analyzing that shirt.

Q Where would you have taken the sample from that ‘

shirt had you wished to do that?

A That's a supposition that's not true.
“ Q What?
[ A That I took samples from that shirt.
: Q You are stating you did not?

A I have no recollection of it, and I think I would
have if I did.

1} Where would you get the sample, if you conducted
| the gapectrographic analysis of it, where would you get the
sample from?

A That would be determined subsequent to my

microscopic examination,

Q You would make a report of your microscopic
examination?
A I would make a report on whether or not I had deemed

that to be a bullet hole.

‘ I would put in there that I saw, probably, fragments
i of lead or I didn't, the conclusions I did or did not find

i material that could be associated with the bullet.

: Q Did you conduct any X-ray examination of the

places on the President's clothing where bullets were alleged

{ REPORTING CO., INC
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to have struck? |

A

Q

I don't recall making any.

Would such an X-ray examination have possibly

revealed anything helpful?

A

type after I had made an examination.

I would only make a judgment of that particular

Q You did make an examination, did you not?

A Of this shirt?

Q Yeas.

A I don't recall making an examination of that :
shirt. |

Q Mr. Johnson, would you show him the photograph of
the collar?

A 1 have a photograph here bearing the number 5 on :
the back. I

Q What is the photograph of?

A The photograph is of a stained, striped shirt

collar area and a tie.

Do there appear to be tears in the shirt collar?
There could be a tear in the shirt collar.

Just one?

Below the button.

Below the button.
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There are several horizontal stripes below the
button, three immediately below it and two more right at
the edge of the collar area.
Is it below that that you are talking about?
A It's below the button.
Q I would like to hand you a Xerox of a photograph
which was introduced in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit
No. 60 on Pebruary 24, and I would like you to take this red
pen that I have here and mark areas where you see tears.
MR. RYAN: I think I will have to object to the
question.
The witness is attempting to indicate where he
thinks there might be tears, but it is purely speculative.
MR, LESAaa‘ He was putting several circles, I
gather, on the photograph. :
THE WITNESS: I can't tell.
MR. RYAN: There is no way of telling from this
photograph.
BY MR. LESAR:
Q Fine.
Let me return to the gquestion of the spectrographic
analysis.

The photograph showing the hole in the back of the




15

President's shirt, if you were called upon to make a
| spectrographic analysis to determine whether or not a bullet

had passed through that hole, where would you take your
F gspectrographic samples from?
A I would take it from the area in the neighborhood
} of the hole which appeared to be most profitable subsequent
to a microscopic examination.

Q Would this be around the edges of the hole?
A Could be.
Could be a little removed.
It is whatever it appears to be would be more

| profitable at the time I was making an examination.
? MR, LESAR: I think that probably concludes the
{ use we will need to make of the materials that were brought
| here by Mr. Johhson; and what I would suggest is that we
will break for lunch;
| MR, RYAN: What other areas are you going to touch
upon?
I MR. LESAR: We haven't begun to touch upon what
“ specific tests were performed, spectrographic and neutron
activation, and what specific reports were made.
; I think that's going to have to go guite some time.

MR. RYAN: Excuse me for one moment.

TR REPORTING CO_ INL
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MR. LESAR: Mr. Johnson and his assistant can
leave.
‘ What do you want, half hour, 45 minutes?
MR, RYAN: 45 minutes.
We will be here at 12:45.
(Whereupon, at 12:00 noon, a luncheon recess was

| taken, to reconvene this same day at 12:45 p.m.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION
(12:47 p.m.)

MR, LESAR: Ready to proceed.

Bafore I begin to resume questioning, I want to
have the reporter mark this photograph of the President's
shirt collar area which Mr. Gallagher marked in red pen as
areas where there might be holes or tears.

I would like to have you put an exhibit number on
that for the record.

{(The document referred to was
marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 1
for identification.)

BY MR, LESAR:

Q Mr. Gallagher, you are familiar with two FBI

agents, Mr. Francis O'Neill and James Sibert?
A I can't place O'Neill.
I know Sibert.

MR, LESAR: I want to show you a copy of a report

that I would like put into the record as Gallagher Exhibit 2.

(The document referred to was
marked Gallagher Exhibit No, 2

for identification.)
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BY MR, LESAR:

Q Would you read the text of that document?

A This is from Francis X. 0'Neill, Jr., Agent, FBI
and James W Sibert, Agent, FBI, to Captain J. H. Stover, Jr.,i
Commanding Officer, U. S, Naval Medical School, National
Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland. |

"We hereby acknowledge receipt of a missile i
removed by Commander James J. Humes, MC, USN on this date." |
Signed Francis X. O'Neill and James W. Sibert.

Q Do y;u know what missile this refers to?

A I have no way of knowing.

Q Could it be the missile that you examined this
morning, Commission Exhibit 3997

A I have no way of knowing.

Q You don't know whether or not you ever performad
any tests on that missile?

A I don't know what the missile is.

Q From the use of the term missile, what do you
think it might include?

A Anything that could move through the air.

Q Would it include a substantially intact bullet?

A Anything that could move through the air could be

considered a missile in my terminology.
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agents on
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@

at any conference of which you were a part?

A

a report of that character.

Q

A

23

Are you familiar with the Sibert-0'Neill report?
This is a report which was made by those two FBI
their observations of the President's autopsy.

I never even knew they even covered the autopsy.
You never saw any report on the autopsy?

I don't know even whether they did prepare a report

Then I take it that their report was not discussed

I have no knowledge whatsoever of the existence of

i =gt R et i e

This morning you testified --
Excuse me.

I might want to add there is no reason in the world

if they did make a report like that that they would brief

of is the

This morning you testified you examined some bullet |
in connection with the President's assassination.

Yes, I did. ‘
What was the history of those fragments? :
1

The only fragment that I have a distinct r.ecollectidn

lead taken from the alleged pristine type bullet.

The other fragments, I cannot recall what they were.

I think they were taken from Kennedy's body, but I

|
I
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can't be sure.

Q Did Mr. Sibert or Mr. O'Neill ever deliver to you
any fragments in connection with the President's assassina-
tion?

A I didn't even know they were associated with the
President's assassination.

Q pid FBI Agent Robert Frazier ever receive any
fragments relating to the President's assassination?

A I have no way of knowing.

Q pid Mr. Frazier ever give any fragments to you?

A I examined fragments from Frazier and returned
them to him.

Q What did they consist of, to your recollection?

A I don't remember, except they were associated with

the Kennedy assassination.
Q Do you recall how many there were?
A No, I don't.

Q The Sibert-0'Neill report, which was dated on the

23rd of November, 1963, the day after the President was shot,

states that two fragments measuring 7 by 2 millimeters and
1 by 2 millimeters were removed from the right side of the
President's brain.

Were those fragments tested?
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A I have no recollection of the fragments, now, that
were tested.

I think those were tested, but I have no positive
recollection.

Q What tests do you think would have been performed
on them?

A Well, they would probably be spectrographic and
neutron activation.

Q In 1967, the then-Attorney General of the United
States, Ramsey élark, established a panel to review the
autopsy X-rays and photographs of the Kennedy assassination
and that panel issued a report in 1968,

Are you familiar with that report?

A No, sir.

Q Was a copy of the report ever made available to
you?

A No.

Q Were you consulted in its preparation?

A On the Clark report?

Q Yes.
A No, I was not,.
Q Do you know of anyone else in connection with the

FBI that was associated or consulted with respect to that

wEHDTED
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report?
A No.
Q pid you ever review the X-rays and photographs

of the President's autopsy?

A I don't recall ever having seen them,
Q pid you consult with anyone who had seen them?
A I had no reason to consult with anybody who had !
seen them, |
Qo In order to conduct the tests that you intended
to carry out, it was not necessary to see those films and
establish the location and character of the wounds?
A I was given isolated fragments which were designated
as having come from certain places associated from the I
Kennedy body and the pristine bullet and asked to compare
it. i
My examination has nothing to do with where they
are found as far as I am concerned.
I was asked to compare the composition.
Q Who asked you to make these comparisons?
A Frazier was what we refer to as the number one
examiner, I believe, on that case at the time.
As the number one examiner, he reads what has come

in, what the specimens are, and then makes some judgments as
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to what can be done about them, |
If he can't make a judgment, he calls us in and we
discuss it.
I thought I could make an analysis of some of
these fragments.

|
|
l
Q He did call you in? |
|
A We did discuss it.

Q Were there many conferences or just one or two?
A I don't recall,

Q You d&n't recall?

A No, I do not recall.

Q Were there any notes made of those consultations

or conferences or any reports made on them?

A The conferences Frazier and I had?

Q Yes.

A Generally speaking, there were no notes made on
them unless, for example, I had to make arrangements to go

down to Oak Ridge, Tennessee.

That is some that's out-of-house, you might say:
so I had to make some kind of a note to my superior to get
approval to go down to Oak Ridge and make this examination.

Other than that, there wouldn't, as a routine thing,

be a memorandum or note or anything written about us
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discussing some particular item.

i We would never get anything done.

i Q Do I understand you correctly; there were

: conferences both with respect to the spectrographic and

' neutron activation analysis, or would you specify what you

conferred with Mr. Frazier about?

! A You asked me how did I get these fragments.

| I said I got these fragments, I'm sure, from
Frazier. '
Prlzia; was the recipient of specimens as they
came into the laboratory.
Frazier could have called me in -- I don't recall
r it -- but if he did, I would have said, "Sure, I can handle
specimens of that nature."”
Q You are saying you don't recall whether or not he
E called you in?
i A I am saying, whether he made a judgment from his
experience or whether he called me in, I can't recall that

detail.

Q Was Mr. Frazier qualified in spectrographic analysia?

A No. |
Q Was he qualified in neutron activation analysis?

A No, he was not,
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1If he made a judgment that was wrong, of course, he}

| would be corrected by me.
“ Q If he made a judgment to do or not to do certain
\ tests, you would correct him?
E A If he sent me something and gave me a list of
l~ specimens or a neutron activation examination and in my |
judgment I didn't think that would be an appropriate type
h of examination, I would certainly discuss that with Frazier
| and Prazier would be objective about £ f A

Q Would h:. Frazier consult anyone else other than
. you about making spectrographic and neutron activation
| analysis?
it A Absolutely.
ﬂ He would discuss or assign these things to any
ﬂ agent examiner in the spectrographic unit.
Q In the spectrographic unit only?
A If it was a matter that related to spectrographic
w matters.
' Q Would he discuss it with Mr. Jevons or Mr. Conrad?
’ A I don't know.

Q The autopsy panel report issued in 1968 says that

there was a 6.5 millimeter fragment imbedded in the outer

\
l
|
\ table of the President's skull close to the edge of the hole,
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to the right of the midline.
Was that 6.5 millimeter fragment ever tested?
A I don't recall.
@ Was it ever removed?
A I don't recall the fragments that I tested now.
It has been 12 years.
Q Let me ask you another guestion.
Should that fragment have been tested?
A I can't make a judgment on that.
Q The panel report says there was this 6.5 millimeter
fragment in the President's head.
Would it be of utility to your examinations to test
that fragment?
A If I saw it I could make that judgment.
Q If you saw such a fragment in a film or if you were
informed of the existence --
A If I had that fragment to look at microscopically,
I could make that judgment.
Q You couldn't make that determination until you had
ie?
A I would have to make that judgment after I locked
at it microscopically.

Q 1f you were aware that that fragment existed, you
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would want to look at it under a microscope?
A If it would contribute to the investigation.
Q You would have to examine it microscopically first |
in order to make that examination, right?
A Normally.
By the same token, I respect Frazier's judgment,
too, if he made the microscopic examination.
Q What if no microscopic examination was made?
Suppose you knew the fragment was in the Pregident's
skull. Would you request it be removed so you could make an
examination of it?
A I didn't know it was in the skull.
Q Assuming that you had known that,
A I can't answer that.
Q Would your microscopic examination of a fragment '
disclose the chemical analysis of the bullet?
A Chemical elements present?
Q What chemical elements would be disclosed by i
microscopic examination?
A By microscopic examination, you don't discover the |
elements.
You do it by subsequent spectrographic examination.:

Q That's what I was driving at. |
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Then why do you do the microscopic examination?

A There is a lot of specimens that, if they weren't
80 highly contaminated, or for some other reason, we would
just pass over them for examination.

In other words, you have got to have a representa-
tive specimen. .

Q I understand that.
Does that apply to neutron activation analysis?
A It appliea to all kinds.

If you take a coin out of your pocket -- it applies
to that, too -- if you take a coin out of your pocket and ‘
it's a whole coin, you say, “That's a quarter.”

If I cut it down too far, what will you say it is?

Q What could have contaminated the fragment inside
the skull of the President?

A I can't make any juddment on that.

Q How big a sample do you have to have in order to

make a proper chemical analysis?

Take spectrographically first.
A A fragment about the size of a common pin head.
Q How many millimeters of a bullet would you have to
have?

A A millimeter square would be adequate if it's a
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li representative sample.

Q For neutron activation analysis?

A Now, you use this term for a proper examination;
is that what you are saying?

Q How big a sample would you need in order to make

‘ a neutron activation analysis?
L A Probably a half a millimeter on each side, roughly.
; Q The fragment in the President's skull is said to |
have been 6.5 millimeters, so it would have been adequate
for the purposes of either spectrographic analysis or neutron
activation analysis.

A I could get a sample that's 20 millimeters and it
wouldn't be adequate if highly contaminated.

Q What could have contaminated a fragment in the

| President's head?

w A What did it go through?
: Q The President's head.
i A What else?

Q According to the FBI, the President's head.

A I can't sit here at a table and make a judgment
why or why not an examination was made or not made.

|

|

|

|

|

| |

} Q For what purposes did you subject items of evidence

‘ in the President's assassination to spectrographic analysis?
|
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A In order to see if they compared as far as their
chemical composition is concerned.
Q Let me read to you from the text of a memorandum
from Mr. Jevons to Mr. Conrad, November 27, 1963:
"In connection with our examination of evidence

in the above matter"” -- referring to the assassination of

President Kennedy -- "we have considered all possible examina-

tions and technigques which could be productive in identify-
ing the perpetrator of the crime ... "
What examinations and techniques were considered?

A I don't recall that memo.

Q Did you ever confer with Mr., Jevons about the
assassination of President Kennedy?

A I conferred with Jevons and Frazier on occasions;
but when and how often, I don't remember.

Q DPid you confer separately and individually or --

A I don't recall.

Q Is Mr. Jevons an expert in any scientific fields?

A Jevons was associated with the petrographic
section of the laboratory before he went into the adminis-
trative office.

Q What does that section do?

A They analyze with a petrographic microscope both
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artificial and natural mixtures of minerals,
Q Would he have been familiar or qualified as an
expert in the areas of spectrographic and neutron activation

analysis?

A He wasa knowledgeable in those areas,

Q But not qualified as an expert?

A Not to my knowledge, no.

Q So that when he says, "We have considered all
possible examinations and techniques,” he must have been
relying upon advice received from you or someone else with
respect to spectrographic analysis and neutron activation
analysis?

A He could have been relying on what he knew, on
other people in the unit.

I don't know who he was relying on.

Q All right.

This indicates "We have considered all possible
examinations and techniques which would be productive in
identifying the perpetrator of the crime."

Was that the purpose of the tests you conducted, !
to identify the perpetrator of the crime?

A Certainly.

The reasons for my tests were to compare fragments
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and see if all were associated with the same source,
! Q Did you make tests and examinations to establish
| that they were not connected with the same source?
A I think that follows.

1f they are not from the same source, and you
“ can make a definitive judgment, you can say they are from
ﬂ a different source.
| g Let me rephrase the question.

Did you conduct tests designed to eliminate the
possibility that Oswald was the perpetrator of the crime?

h A I don't try to conduct tests to prove that Oswald
j was or was not.

ﬂ I conduct tests to see whether these metal frag-
j ments match in composition or do not.

If they match, I report that. If they don't, I |
report that.
! I have to put it out as it comes out of the |
instruments as interpreted by ne.

0 Did you conduct examinations and tests which were
designed to determine whether or not more than one person
could have been the perpetrator of the assassination?

A I conducted tests to see if bullet fragwents

matched in composition.
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I performed tests on the paraffin to see if they

could be associated with the firing of the weapon.

Those are the immediate purposes for which I

examined these specimens.

]

pid you make any spectrographic analysis of the

empty shells found in the TSBD?

A

Q

I believe I did make an examination of shells.
I don't know where they were found at this stage.

Did you compare them -- did you make a spectro-

graphic comparisoﬁ of them?

A

Q

A

Yes, I believe I did.
what form would that take?

I don't know whether it was a spectrographic or

neutron activation test now, really.

I think I did, though; but I am not sure of that

particular thing.

@

Assuming that you might have done it, how would you;

do it is what I am driving at.

created?

I could do it by emission spectrograph.
What would you do?
I could spark the sample or burn the sample,

If you burn a sample, what sort of records are
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A Spectrographic plates,

Q Then you write down notes on what you observe on
the spectrographic plates?

A Normally.

@& Do you type up reports?

A No.

I do not type up reports.
Q You would make a report which would be put in
typed form?
A I might not make the report.
I might give the data to Frazier, for example,
and then to incorporate it in his report.
Q I see.
What elements would you be testing for in testing
those empty shells?
A Any that I could see.
Q How many would you normally expect to see?
A There is no such a thing.
Every one of these things has to be viewed and the
determination made on an individual basis.
Q With respect to the ammunition of the type allegedly
used by Oswald?

A I don't know.
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{ Q Did you test for the chemical composition of the
é empty shell itself?
i A I don't know whether I did or not at this stage of
i the game,
| I have analyzed empty shells, but I don't know if
| I did in this case or somebody else did.
{ Q If you didn't make such a test, how could you make
i a match?
| A I wouldn't make a match, but that doesn't say
: somebody else &idn't.
I don't know whether I did or not.

Q Did you consider -- other than spectrographic and
neutron activation analysis -- did you consider other tests;
| for example, analysis of the residues on bullet 399?

A Specifically what residue are you talking about?
i Q Either human or any other residues; human, first?
A I wouldn't analyze anything for human residue.

Q Why not?

A That's not my expertise.
Q You did observe the President's tie and shirt collar,
I believe?

i A The photographs.

“ Q The photographs.
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You did not ever observe the shirt and tie?

A If I did observe them, I think it was real casually.

|
i

tears in the collar and the nick on the tie had been formed by

Q pid you form any opinion as to whether or not the

a bullet?
A I don't recall making that judgment. }
Q Now, how many chemical elements would you find -- |

the range of the number of chemical elements you would nornalﬁy
|

find in that bullet?

A The rnhge of chemical elements? |

Q Yeah, how many?

A By what examination?

Q By spectrographic examination.

A Oh, you might find, by the emission spectrograph,
you might find sometimes 12.

Q Could you name some of them?

A Lead, antimony, copper, silver, gold, bismuth,
magnesium, silicon, to name a few.

Q Do you draw a distinction between elements and
trace elements?

A I don't know what you mean.

Qo Sometimes some of the literature on the subject

refers to trace elements; antimony, for example.
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Antimony is an element.

Now, a trace element is a small amount of antimony,

probably .00l percent, would be a trace of antimony.

Q

You say you might find up to 12 elements in a

bullet by means of emission spectrograph.

A

2

You might.
You might.
what would the range normally be?

What is the fewest you would expect to find and,

on the average, how many would you expect to find?

A

e

I don't have that data.

With respect to neutron activation analysis of the

bullet, how many elements could you find present in a

bullet and how many would you normally expect to find?

A

PP PP

Q

Probably about three.

You would only find three?

Yes.

By means of neutron activation analysis?
Yes.

Why does the spectrographic analysis reveal more

than the neutron activation analysis?

A

Why does it?

Well, actually, when Yyou are using the spectrograph,
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ou have got more or less a shotgun approach. With neutron
ictivation analysis, you have more of a rifle approach.

You have many elements that can be seen on the
emission spectrograph, and then when we wanted to guantify
these elements and try to measure them accurately, the amount
present, we try to get the three we can see on the neutron
activation analysis procedure,.

Q of the twelve elements or so that you can see on
the spectrographic plates, there are only three that you can
test for by neutron activation analysis?

A No, there are more than three.

Normally copper, antimony and silver.

Q How about bismuth?

A I don't think you would see bismuth.

Q How about barium?
A You could see barium.
Q When you say there are about twelve elements that

you can detect by means of emission spectrograph, do you
mean more or less all in the bullet?

How many would be present in the jacket of the
bullet and how many in the core?

A I don't know.

Q Would you find more in the core than in the jacket?

——
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A I don't know cffhand.

I would have to analyze them and see,

Q Can the spectrograph pick up all the elements
present -in the bullet?

A I don't know any procedure than can pick up all
the elements in any specimen.

Q All right.

MR. RYAN: Are you asking Mr. Gallagher to state
what current laboratory techniques can find -- or on the
basis of his experience working with the laboratory those
many years ago during the Kennedy assassination?

MR. LESAR: State of the technology when President
Kennedy was shot.

That should be understood.

BY MR. LESAR:
Q There was a live round of ammunition found in the
rifle, the murder weapon, in the Mannlicher-Carcano rifle.

How many chemical elements were identified as
present in that round?

A I don't know.
Q Did you test that round?
A I don't know.

Q Should you have tested that round?
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| A Somebody probably did, and it might have been me;

: but I don't remember.

Q It would have been normal to test that round?
What I am asking, you have got a live round found

in a rifle that's alleged to have fired the shots that

killed the President.
You normally would test that round, wouldn't you?

1 A I would have to know all the circumstances surround-

ing that.

| Somebody might have said, "Don't."

Q And if they said, "Don't," you wouldn't have?

A I examine the specimens that are brought in to me.
Q I thought you were the expert on those procedures.
Il
H A I am one of the experts in these procedures, one

i of the experts.
Q Who else would possibly have told you not to test?
A Nobody would tell me not to test,
There might be circumstances surrounding the
examination where they didn't want it touched.
g Would you elaborate on that?

1 am most mystified by that.

What possible circumstances could there be for not
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testing the round found in the rifle?

A I don't know offhand.

Probably it was tested. If it was paramount to
have it tested, it was tested.

Q What would you normally test --

A There are some times where it is more important,
blood, for example, covering the surface of the thing. I
have had cases like that.

They told us, “Don't take anything off; the thing
is soaked in blood and that's what I want.”

You have to know all the details of the investiga-
tion.

Q Absent something that contaminated the bullet or
evidenciary purpose that had a higher demand on it, you

would have tested that bullet?

A The chances are it would have been, yes, definitely.

Q If you were told not to test that bullet, would you{

inquire why?
A Yes.
Certainly.
I would be told why.
Q Do you recall anyone telling you why that bullet

should not be tested?
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A I don't know for a fact it wasn't tested.

I don't know whether it was or wasn't tested.

Q With respect to the spectrographic analysis of the
President's clothing, you made that spectrngaphic analysis,
did you not?

A I don't think I did.

I don't remember making it.

Q Do you recall whether or not --

Do you recall having seen any report on the testing
of the President's clothing?

A At this stage, I don't recall.

It has been 14 years since I have seen these
reports -- 13 years. If I could see the report, I could
probably give you some --

G I will pass you a folder which contains spectro-
graphic analysis.

A I might point out here that that entire cartridge

there which 1s defined in the FBI laboratory report as Q-&

"was judged to be of the same manufacturer as Q-6 and Q-7,

6.5 millimeter Mannlicher-Carcano cartridges, Western
Cartridge Company, as was the 6.5 millimeter Q-8.
There probably is the answer. They know where it

came from.
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Q You don't know the chemical composition, do you?

A That's why you analyze, to see if it came from the
same source.

If I gave you a two-cent or eight-cent.stamp, you
would say, "This is a United States stamp."

Would you send it in to me to have me analyze the
glue and ink?

Q Would you analyze it to determine whether or not
other fragments associated with the murder are of the same
chemical conpo-iti;n as it?

A You had other specimens there.

Q what other specimens?

A The pristine bullet, which was the same as these.

(i} Was there any question about whether or not that
bullet was actually the one which shot the President or
Governor Connally?

A Which bullet?

Q The bullet you examined this morning, CE-399.

A Is there any question?

Yes.

» ®©

I can't make a judgment on that.

1 didn't make that examination.

0 1f you couldn't make that judgment, then you needed

|
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to test the bullet in the Mannlicher-Carcano, did you not?

A No, because did not that bullet come from the same
rifle?

Qo The bullets had all been chambered, including in
different rifles.

A I can't make a judgment.

I know I just pointed out to you that there are

circumstances which I didn't know when I started this conver-

sation which would hinge on whether or not an examination
would be made. -
This is just one of a maze of circumstances.
I don't know them all at this particular date.
I think sound judgments were made all along the
line.
Q@ Would you expect to find human tissue on a bullet
that is alleged to have passed through two men?
A I will not make any judgment on that.
Q Did you make any observation on the bullet to see
whether or not it had such residues?
A I do not -- that's not my area of expertise.
Q Who would have done that?
A Somebody in the serology section.

Q Do you recall that the spectrographic examination
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of the President's clothing found no copper on the President's
shirt collar and the President's tie?

A I don't recall that.

Q Wexe you ever consulted about that?

A I don't recall having been consulted about that.

Q I want to show you a copy of a letter to Mr. Rankin
from Mr. J, Edgar Hoover, dated March 18, 1964, and ask you
whether or not you are familiar with this document .

A Yes.

Q would‘you read aloud the top paragraph on the

second page of that document?

A On the second page of the document,

“4. Would neutron activation analyses show if a
r bullet passed through the hole in the front of President

| Kennedy's shirt near the collar button area and also if a

\
l
|
|
| bullet passed through the material of his tie? Neutren {
activation is a sensitive analytical technique to determine f
elements present in a substance. During the course of the i
spectrographic examinations previously conducted of the ;
fabric surrounding the hole in the front of the shirt,
including the tie, no copper was found in excess of that

present elsewhere in undamaged areas of the shirt and tie.

|
Therefore, no copper was found which could be attributed to !
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projectile fragments."
MR. LESAR: I would like to have the reporter
label that as Gallagher Exhibit 3.
(The document referred to was
marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 3
for identification.)
BY MR, LESAR:
Q To resume with the questioning, with respect to
this question which Mr. Rankin posed to Mr. Hoover, "Would

neutron activation analyses show if a bullet passed through

the hole in the front of President Kennedy's shirt near the

. ecollar button area and also if a bullet passed through the 1
‘ |
| material of his tie?" -- what is the answer to that question? |

| A Normally, no. i
[ Q It would not show whather or not it passed through?\
i

-

Normally, no.
Q Why not?
A

Neutron activation analysis will not pick up lead

by what we call the thermal neutron analysis procedure.
It will pick up copper.
When you have a shirt like that, you cannot pick

the pleces of particles or copper off the shirt. You have

to take a sample around the hole as was done in this case
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and analyze it on the spectrograph to see the copper.

Now, when you take a piece of a shirt and you put
it in a reactor and you activate, the shirt has an abundance
of sodium in it and sodium just wipes out everything.

You would have to make a chemical separation. It
would be the wrong way to go.

Q Wrong for what reason?

A It would rot be the appropriate examination to

use,
Q What do you mean by that?
A Exactly that,
For example, there are examinations that you use
for blood. You would not analyze a blood sample by neutron

activation analysis or spectrograph.

There are examinations which are appropriate.

In the judgment of everybody in the business,
neutron activation analysis would not be the appropriate
examination for a bullet hole.

Q I can understand you are saying it would not be.

What I don't understand is the reason.

A I can't make it any clearer.
Q Are you saying it would destroy the tie?

A I said if you find a piece of cloth, the cloth has
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an abundance of sodium, especially something that has been

worn like a shirt, and that just wipes out your analysis.

neutron capture. This cross section, great ability to eat

up neutrons in the reactor and becomes highly activated.
all you see is sodium.

an examination that is more appropriate?

@

or not a bullet struck those areas of the President's

clothing?
A

Q

on its own merit.

e

the back of the shirt.

A

e
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Sodium had a large cross section for thermal

When you put your data on a multi-channel analyzer,

Why would you do something like that when there is

Would the spectrographic analysis determine whether

You want me to give you a probability on it?
Yes.

I can't do that.

Sometimes it does and sometimes it doesn't.

|
|

L
i
|

|

i
Every one of these examinations has to be evaluated |
|

|

|

It apparently did give an analysis with respect to
r

I certainly would believe that. i

Would it not do the same thing with respect to the

collar and the tie?
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A I don't know.

D —

wWhat does it say there?

Q He goes on to say that, "Neutron activation is a

sensitive analytical technigue to determine elements present ]

in a substance, During the course of the spectrographic

e

examinations previously conducted of the fabric surrounding

the hole in the front of the shirt, including the tie, no
copper was found in excess of that present elsewhere in
undamaged areas of the shirt and tie. Therefore, no copper

was found which could be attributed to projectile fragments."

In short, I interpreted that to mean that there was
no copper found that could be attributed to a bullet on the
tie and the shirt collar.

Is that sufficient to determine that no bullet
struck those areas?

A I don't know.

") pid you make any comparison between the spectro-

graphic finding with respect to the hole in the back of the i é
1

President's shirt which showed copper and the finding with ‘

respect to the tie and shirt collar which did not show |

copper?

A I don't recall making that examination.

Q Would there have been a report on whether or not |
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that examination had been made?

A I don't know.

Q Would there be a report of the results of that
examination?

A If the examination was made, there would be a
report.

Q A written report?

A You mean a handwritten report?

Q Handwritten or typed.

A I imagine it would be sent out as a report.

Q You mean a typed report? [

A Normally a report is sent out on the examinations

that are conducted,

Q Is it common for the chemical composition of a

|
|
bullet to vary from one location to another within the bullatﬂ
A It's possible. l
Q How much would the variation be? ’
A Anywhere from none at all to a huge amount. #
Qo Would there be a qualitative variation; in other !
words, would you find chemical elements present at the nose
of a bullet which you would not find at the base end of a
bullet?

A It's possible.
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Q But it's not likely, I take it?
A It's not likely under normal conditions.

Q Would that apply to both the jacket and to the

A I don't know.

Q Would there be a guantitative variation?

A You are asking me to make judgments here on this
stuff; is that what you are asking me to do?

Q I am just seeking information from you based upon
your experience, would you expect to find variations within
a bullet from one end to the other in the chemical composi-
tion, quantitative amount of chemical element differences?

MR. RYAN: That seems to be a hypothetical guestion

& which doesn't seem to have a foundation in this case.

l MR. LESAR: I want to find out if they performed
tests to find out if there were such examinations.

MR. RYAN: Is there something that says there were
variations in the chemical compositions?

MR. LESAR: That's what I am trying to find out. i

MR. RYAN: The witness can testify as to whether

he knows there were any reports that indicated variations.

THE WITNESS: I don't know.
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BY MR. LESAR:

Q You don't know whether there were any variations in

the bullets of the type of ammunitions allegedly used in the
assassination?

A I ean't answer that gquestion.

41 Why not?

A Because it's too vague.

Q Let's try and refine it.

pid you perform any tests in connection with the

President's assassination on ammunition of the type nllegedly‘

used in the assassination to determine whether or not the

chemical composition of that type of ammunition varied within

a bullet?

A Studies were made of that for various types of
bullets.

Q Including the Western ammunition?

A I believe so; studies before the assassination,

studies were made.

Q of that particular type of ammunition?

A For the examiners' background information.

Q I am asking you specifically -- you had ammunition
of the type allegedly used in the assassination.

pid you take that ammunition and perform

|
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spectrographic and neutron activation analysis on it to
determine the chemical composition of the bullet at various

locations in the bullet?

Yes, we did; except in the case of the pristine

couldn't get to because we were asked to keep it

e

s

s e re

e

for posterity.
o And you made reports on what results were obtained?
A The results of the pullet fragments?
Q I am not talking about bullet fragments.
I am talking about the other ammunition. |

| A of course we didn't. This was background informa- l

tion.

I analyze 100 samples of paint to get background
information. This is my homework, what I have to do for |
homework so I understand what I am talking about. ‘

Q That's what I am getting at.
In order to evaluate your results of spectrographici

analysis of bullets and fragments, You have to have a control)

don't you?

You need to analyze other examples of that same

type of ammunition in order to determine what variations

I

| are found within the chemical composition within a particular

bullet?
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A Are you telling me what I need?

Q I am asking you.

A We had what we needed to make the judgments we made.
I had an analysis of the bullets which I determined

to be representative samples from these bullets.

Qo Which were those?

A I don't know.
I don't have the reports.

Q Are you saying that the representative sample is

CE-399?
A I took a sample from 399.

Q pid you have other bullets that you made tests on?

A 1 don't recall.

1 don't recall. E

The only thing I do know is that I took represen- \

tative specimens from these fragments and bullets as best I |

could. |

I made judgments on what the data showed. l

When you take specimens from different areas of the1

sample, you get an idea -- feel for the variation, which I ,

do not have at this date. i
Q What sort of variations did you find?

A I don't know at this time. ;

ey e
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13 years later, I don't recall the data on that.

Q Do you recall whether or not the chemical mix was
relatively consistent within the samples?

A - I don't recall.

Q Would you have made tests, also, upon the jackets
of that type of ammunition to determine whether there was
variation from one place to another on the jacket?

A I don't recall whether I did or not.

Q All right.

You don't recall, for example, whether or not
there was any variation --

pid you take more than one sample from CE-399
for spectrographic examination?

A I don't recall.

Qo Therefore you cannot recall whether or not there
was any variation from different locations on that bullet?

A 3997

I don't recall.

Q pid you test -- the samples you took, say from the
base of 399, subjected to the spectrographic analysis and,
I think, neutron activation analysis.

How many times did you test the sample?

A I don't know offhand.
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I know it was more than once, but I don't know
whether it was six or five times.

Q Let's take spectrographic analysis first.

If you have a sample of the core of a bullet and
you subject it to spectrographic testing several times, do
you get identical results in each testing?

A You don't get identical results in any type of
testing. Every type of testing has instrumental error,
measurement error of some type.

If I -asked you to measure the length of this table
to .02 millimeters, you couldn't get identical results if
you did that more than one time.

The term doesn't mean anything.

Q What I want to know, what is the range of error?

Did you determine what the range of error would

A Yes, I did.

Q How did you determine that?

A I determined it from my standard deviations.

Q You applied the standard deviation to the samples?
A Yes.

[+ How do you obtain the standard deviation?

A The standard deviation?




HOOVER REPORTING C0_, INC
120 Massachusets Avenue, N [
Washington. D.C 2002

1202} 546666k

—_—

I
i
j|
|l

61

MR. RYAN: can You relate that question specifica
to a particular item of evidence in the Kennedy assassinati,
rather than making it a generalized question?

MR. LESAR: vYeah.

BY MR, LESAR:

Q What was the maximum variation that You found --

A I don't remember,

Q Let me show You a folder of Your neutron activatio
analysis and see if You can determine it from that,

A No. I can't determine it from this.

Q Would there be any sort of record in which You coul
determine what the maximum variation wasg?

A I could take and tabulate these and figure it out,

Q Would you ordinarily -- You would ordinarily
tabulate the results on thoge notas there before you would
be able to figure out the variation?

A I mean, looking at thig I couldn't.

But at the time as I was going along with this, 1 |

|

was following the thing,
I was into it; I was living it.

Q You listed all the elements, ang then you listed thé

results for each of them?
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A I might not have listed them. I might have made
calculations as I went along,
Q Can you determine from those sheets whether you
made calculations as you went along?
A How could I?
This is the essential data.
If anybody wants to go back and check my work,
the essential data is here,
Q Who else could understand them but you?

A Anybody down at Oak Ridge, Tennessee, can under-

stand these things; anybody doing neutron activation analyaiui

can follow these things very clearly.

Every single peice of data that they need is here.

MR, RYAN: I object.

I don't think it is fair to ask the witness to try
to remember every calculation which he might have made or
somebody might have made in the laboratory 13 years ago.

It's asking tco much.

BY MR. LESAR:

Q Could the Warren Commission have made the proper
calculations from those notes?

A The Warren Commission -- I don't know whether they

could or not, but I know muybody in the business can.




HOOVER REPORTING CO.INC ||
121 Massachusells Avenie N.L 'I
Hashington, D G 20002
"l ) Hab-hbbb

63

Q Did you give them a report on the nuetron activation

analysis?
A A report?
A letter went out to Rankin, I think, on some of
this stuff,
Q Who did you submit your report to on this?
A Who did I submit it to?
Q Yes.
A I submitted it to the files.
It went to Rankin.

Q Commission's general counsel?

ed

He got a copy of the results.
Q What do you recall about that report?

A I had to wedge this data in with the Oak Ridge
atomic reactor data.

Q I believe you will see the dates on those work
sheets, I think May 15.
Is that correct?

A Yes.

l
Q What explains the long delay in conducting neutron ‘

activation analysis on these items?
A You can see from all the reports that were

furnished that there was no delay whatscever in any of the

|
l
|
|
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!
|
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|
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reports that were in-house,.

This here requires an atomic reactor.

At that particular time, the atomic reactor that
we chose to use, which was a real good reactor, was at Oak
Ridge, Tennessee. We can't just walk in there like we own
the reactor.

It has a fuel cycle period where they have to

change the fuel and all that. There are also ongoing

programs on that reactor which we have to sandwich in between,

All this has to be done out-of-house, you might
Say; and it takes a lot longer with a complicated piece of
equipment like a nuclear reactor.
Q Could it have been done sooner at the Gulf Atomic
at San Diego?

MR. RYAN: I object.

I think that calls for speculations on the part of

the witness.

BY MR. LESAR:

Qe Why did you choose Oak Ridge over Gulf Atomic?

A Because Oak Ridge was a very prominent site, had
great capabilities along these lines.

Q Didn't the AEC recommend you use Gulf?

A I don't recall that AEC recommended we use theirs,

T
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Qo When did you do the neutron activation analysis on
the paraffin casts?

A I did that prior to the lead.

Q@  You did it prior to the lead?

A But I don't remember when.

Q Do you recall you had a series of conferences in
December with officials from the AEC?

A I had conferences with officials of the AEC to get
into their reactor.

Q You gét into the reactor for the paraffin cast
long before the fragment and bullet analysis?

A Yes.

That's understandable.

Qe Why?

A We had bullet analysis by spectrographic analysis
and didn't have the paraffin casts analyzed by any technique.

Q When you performed these neutron activation
analyses at Oak Ridge, was Mr. Vincent Guinn present?

A Dr. Vincent Guinn at the time was a director of
general dynamic -- general atomics, was making lazy susan
type reactors; and Vincent Guinn was a man who was deep into
neutron activation analysis.

I know him very well.

]
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Qa He has initially indicated he was going to be a
consultant on the tests you carried out down in Oak Ridge?

A No.

He didn't say he would be a consultant, I don't
think he ever said that.

I don't recall him, to me, offering his services
as a consultant.

Q Was he a consultant?

A He was a consultant on many cases; not as far as
we were coneorgnd.

Q He did not provide you any advice or information
or suggestions with respect to the tests that you carried out
in this case?

A As I told you before, I was working with extremely
competent men at Oak Ridge, Tennessee.

We had a reactor facility that was equal to -- no
other equal to it as far as I was concerned; and, as far as
the competency of the men concerned, I don't think you can
doubt their competency.

They were deep into neutron activation analysis.

If we had a problem, we had to consult with scmebody

we would have done it.

Q Would one of the more experienced men in the field \

|
|
|

——————
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of neutron activation analysis as a criminologist would have
been Dr. Aebersold, would it not?
A I highly disagree with that.
I don't think Dr. Aebersold -- I think he committed
suicide.
Q As of what date?
Do you know?
A I don't know,.
Q Wasn't he the head of the research arm, AEC,
carrying out exp&rinantu in those fields?
A Dr. Aebersold was an administrative man. I think
everybody in the business relaizes that.
Q Why did you want to keep him out of these procedures?
A I could care less whether Dr., Abersold was in
the procedures or not, but I would have weighted his judgment,
I don't think he had the expertise in neutron activation
analysis, and I am sure he had never conducted any.

Q You had no reason for trying to conceal from him

the tests to be carried out? f

A I could care less.
I could care less who knows about the tests carriedi

out. At that time it was important they didn't get out all

over the papers until we got some data in.
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MR. RYAN: What is the relevance of this line of

questioning?

MR. LESAR: What I am driving at is to understand

the manner in which these tests were carried out and what sort

of records were generated with respact to them,

MR. RYAN: I don't understand the relevance of
what Dr. Aebersold's involvement is.

MR. LESAR: Mr, Aebersold specifically recommended
certain tests.

I would like to know why they weren't carried out
in view of his recommendations.

BY MR. LESAR:

Q I have a letter which Mr. Aebersold directed to
Mr. Herbert J. Miller, December 11, 1963. It contains
certain recommendations.

As you will recall, earlier this afternoon, I
directed a number of questions as to why no tests were made
on the bullet found in the rifle.

Why was this advice from this letter rejected?

A I don't know the reason this advice was rejected,

I gave you one reason I just read from a few pages
of the report.

The fellow read on there who made the cartridges

e
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and who was the manufaéturar. That would be the reason for
the tents.‘

Aebersold is speculating there.

MR. RYAN: I think the main reason for us to be
here is to find out whether tests were conducted. I think
we could really shorten the questioning.

BY MR. LESAR:

Q I would like you just to do your best to recall all
the items of evidence that you took down to Oak Ridge
National Liboratory and subjected to neutron activation
analysis.

A I cannot recall specifically what the items and
specimen: numbers were. You understand the confusion -- we
had FBI numbers, Commission numbers; and I don't recall all
these numbers and I don't recall the specimens.

I took down paraffin lifts from Oswald and bullet
particles for examination.

Specific items you could list from now until
Sunday and I don't reéall the specific items.

Q Let me give you a couple of examples.

The curbstone that you examined earlier this afte:
noon, did you take that to Oak Ridge and subject that to

analysis?
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A I did not.
Q Is there any reason why that would not be done?
MR. RYAN: I object.
I don't think why is a relevant issue in your
Freedom of Information lawsuit.
Does the witness know why it was not done?
THE WITNESS: It was run by a spectrographic
examination, which results could not be improved on,

undoubtedly is the reason.

BY MR, LESAR:

[+ Did you take the President's clothing down? !
A For the holes? ;
Q Yes.
A I thought I was very explicit about analyzing

holes, :
Q Did you take the scraping from the window of the J

presidential limousine down and subject that to those tests?
A I can't recall.
Q You don't recall the test you ran on that?
A I don't recall. E
Q Could you hand me the folder back?

You now have in front of you a sheet which has

specimen No. Q-15 on it, do you not?
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l does it not?
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that?

1 A

0

A

Q

A

\ not adequate? i

the reactor?

L

Yes.

That indicates that you did take it down for testing,

It indicates that I had it down for testing, yes.
That you had it in the reactor?

Yes.

Why are there no results?
I didn't obtain any.

pid you make any report on the significance of

| |
|

Except that the sample wasn't adequate.
l

Is there any report on the fact that the sample was

1 don't know whether there was a report on it. i
Do you have the letter to Rankin? 1

Who was present at the time that yu put that in

I tell you, Dr. Frank Dyer and possibly William |
|

Lyon; and there was one other gentleman there -— 1 am giving l
\
|

you the possibility of those who could have been there.

| life.

j
l

I will think of it before I leave, probably.

I can't think of the other chap's name to save my
|
|
;

Previously you asked if I had run repeated samples |
\

Y T T T T T TSy
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| and I think this chart will reflect that I have.
MR, LESAR: We will mark it as an exhibit,
‘ Could you mark that as the next Gallagher exhibit,
just that page?
(The document referred to was
marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 4
for identification.)

BY MR, LESAR:

Q Now, without a report on Q-15, how would anyone
know that you obtained no results from it?

A By looking on these notes here.

Q Where on those notes does it say you obtained
nothing on Q-157

A The page is blank. If any thing had come out, it
would have been on here.

Q How would the Warren Commission know that?

A They could have asked me,

Q They could have asked you.

A If it was pertinent, I am sure they would have.

i Q You don't feel it is pertinent?

1 A If they did, they would have.
Q Did the Warren Commission ask you to make the test?
A No, I don't think so.

HWER REPORY 8 Lt INY
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\ Q2 Who asked you to make a test?

i
“ A It was our judgment we might get something out of

Q what sort of comparisons did you make as a result
of your spectrographic and neutron activation analysis?

A Compared them to see if they were compatible.

to see if anything -- any judgment that could be furthered.

Q Lat ne‘gat it clear.

head and two fragments in the front seat of the car, one

Exhibit 399.
l There were the items of the President's clothing.
There was a curbstone and the windshield scraping.
1 pid you take each specimen and compare it with
\ each of the others?
A Yes, I believe I did.
Q And did you make a table of that?
A I don't recall whether I did or not.
\ Q Did you make a report on the comparisons and what

-‘ the comparisons showed?
|

SN RTPORTING LD ING

Q You compared each sample of each item of evidence?

A Each specimen, analysis of the different specimens

There were two fragments removed from the President'

|

from Governor Connally's wrist, the bullet which is Commission
|

\
|
|
|
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A No.

There was a report that want oui previously on
the spectrographic examinations.

Q When was that?

A I don't know.

Subsegquent to the receipt of the specimens.

Q when was that?

A I don't know.

@ The specimens were received on Hovember 22 Or 23,
I believe.

A Within two weeks a report went out, I would say.

Q There was no further report after that?

A Then there was a report on the neutron activation
analysis, a letter to Rankin.

Q We have no work sheets, no reports, no evidence
whatsoever that the copper fragment found on the front seat
was subjected to neutron activation analysis.

Was it?

A I don't recall.

Q Should it have been?

A I don't recall.

I think copper has the same problem of hiding

elenents as does sodium.

T et



Probably was run on a spectrograph.

|
|
Qo You didn't run tests on other things, other mattersT

having copper?

— =

\
1
A I don't know. '
I don't know at this stage. L

Q pid you compare the copper found on the President's
clothing, the back of the coat and back of the shirt, with |

the copper from bullet 3997

A How do you compare copper? [

Copper is an element.

Q pid you make a comparison of the quantitative |

amounts present? |
A Quantitative amounts present -- just that's a @

greater amoung found on the cloth or greater than the

amount in the cloth itself that determines whether the area
is contaminated with copper.
Q Wouldn't you find out how many parts per million

was copper or silver or something else?

———————

\ A I probably would if I thought somebody would be

interested in that.
Q You didn't think that should have been determined
so you could compare the percentage of those elements present

| in the sample removed from the President's coat with the

I e e
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bullet alleged to have made the bullet hole?

A

back of the coat and it is in excess of what is in the cloth,

I don't know.

To me, it sounds like you are garbling on this.

Copper is an element.

If you find copper on the

you say that area is smeared with copper.

You want me to compare this copper and measure

how much copper there is so that you can say that the

bullat is 60 percent copper or the jacket is 60 percent

copper?
Q Yes.
A The 60 percent copper smeared on the coat?
The samples are not capable for that type of an
examination.
g All right.
Were there any other elements ——
A I did not make those examinations.
Q Which examinations?
A On the cloth.
Q You did not make those examinations?
A Ho.,
Qe Who made them?
A I don't know,

M TRTITACTSD
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I was probably at Oak Ridge with the parrafin

casts at the time.

Q

I don't know.

pid you compare the copper present in the jacket

of bullet CE-399 with the copper present in the Q-3 jacket?

A

I did not compare the copper present in 399 with

the copper present in Q-3.

Q

A

e

Why not?

I didn't think --

The coéper present in Q-3 -- what is that?
One of the two front seat fragments.

I don't see Q-3.

I don't find it there.

What is that?

Is it a copper fragment found on the front seat,

one copper and one copper and lead,.

A

That was probably examined by spectrographic and

not enough for me to examine,

Q

A

This was a large fragment.

I don't know.

We will see if it is in here.
You can't find it in there?

I can't find it here. I can't find it in here.

e e
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I don't know how large it was or how small it was.

Q It was 35 grains.

A I have no recollection of it.

Qo of whether or not it was tested?

>

I have no recollection of it.
Q You would expect that you would have tested it?
A I am not here to expect anything. I am telling

you I have no recollection of it.

Q Is there any reason why you would not have tested
it? ‘
A I don't know.
I have no recollection of it.
Q Who determined what you would test?
A I think it's a sound judgment of experienced
examiners.

Q Which examiners?
A Examiners who have expertise in the matter.

Q How many examiners participated in the spectro-

graphic examinations? L
A I don't know.

As I say, I think I must have been down at Oak

Ridge when a lot of these spectrographic examinations were \5

run.

e
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Q Did you compare the lead fragments -~

A You are going to ask me about specifically lead
fragments, and I told you repeatedly that I am not familiar
with these individual specimens.

If you want to talk in general terms, all right;

but specific, individual specimens I don't recall.

Q Let me ask it, then, in terms of what should have
been done or what you normally would have done under the

circumstances.

There were fragments recovered from Governor

ﬂ Connally's wrist. i
|
' Would you normally have compared those fragments j

with the chemical composition of the bullet which is alleged

|

to have gone through both President Kennedy and Governor J
Connally? |

A There isn't anything I do normally. We make i
judgments on each individual case, and we view each
one of these and make judgments on their own.

Q Isn't the relevant factor that you had a bullet
which is in what has been described as virtually pristine
- shape with very little, if anything, missing from it; you
have fragments removed from Governor Connally's wrist; would
you not want to know whether or not those fragments were

HOOVER REPORVING Cii N
Mat | '

e T o i U L e (s e S BT S T U T K S Dt



IVER REPORTING Ci)

a

sy

| it

LTS T
1 TS

I

.

IN

80

identical with that bullet or could be?

A 0Of course we would like to know.

We would like to know anything that could contribute
to the investigation.

I am not going to answer anything on specific
items which I am not familiar with and do not recall right
now.

Q It would have added to your knowledged if there
had been such a comparison, would it not?

A I will not make any judgments on individual
specimens.

Q Was there any reason why you would not perform
every test possible in the case of the assassination of the
President of the United States?

A I think we took every damn avenue we could walk
down in this case.

When the paraffin casts came in, we didn't think we
had any chance of getting a result. We determined antimony
and barium.

We knew there was very little chance. We covered
every avenue that we thought was scientifically sane.

Q You did that before you determined whether or not

the fragments from Governor Connallv's wrist came from the
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bullet which allegedly caused his wrist wound?

A I explained to you the reason for that.

n Do you recall whether or not the fragments from
Governor Connally's wrist were comapred with --

A I cannot talk to you about individual specimens
which I do not recall.

0 I believe that the TFBI was not pinching pennies on
the investigation of President Kennedy's assassination.

A They weren't pinching any pennies, energy or

enthusiasm to get to the bottom of it.

f Q You would expect all of the tests possible would
have been done? |

A Every test we thought was possible was done -- not

| possible, but practical.

I Q. Then why wouldn't vou compare --
A pon't ask me about specific specimens.
Q Q-3 is not present in any work sheets we have.

Wouldn't you want to determine --

Q Wouldn't you want to determine whether or not that

|
|
| A I will not comment on any specific specimen.
|
il was associated with the allegedly fatal bullet which struck
i
|
|

President Kennedy?

H A Every examination we did was to contribute something
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to the solution of this particular crime.
0 You had specimens of copper in the front seat --
MR. RYAN: The witness has already stated he will
not be able --
MR. LESAR: Let me rephrase.
BY MR. LESAR:
Q Were you present when Special Agent Robert Frazier
testified before the Warren Commission?
A No, I wasn't.

-

Qo Mr. Frazier testified that you made the examination

| comparing the bullet fragment found on the front seat with

Commission Exhibit 399, and Mr. Specter asks was that examina-!

tion made in the regular course of examining procedures in

the FBI.

| The answer was yes, sir.

Mr. Frazier and Mr. Spector refer to normal

|| conference procedures among FBI examiners.

What are they referring to when they refer to the
| normal conference procedures?

A I can't speak for anybody but myself.

Normally when I do an examination, Frazier has
responsibility for this evidence. I get this evidence from

| Frazier; I have to return it to Frazier because he will be
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held responsible for these different specimens.

When I bring that specimen back, I am going to
either -- he might have a girl there dictating to her and I
might dictate a paragraph.

Conference is too formal a term.

I might dictate my part, or I might give him a
little note.

I give him my work sheet and I give him the

specimens and then I go back and make a note that I gave them

to him on that certain date.

After 30 days these cards are thrown away.

E o What cards? | \
: A The little case cards.
‘! (1} For receipt of the evidence?
I A Just so that in case some question comes up, there
is a specimen missing, just little ticklers I keep for
1
1‘ myself.
| After 30 days I throw them away.
I 0 pid you do that in the case of the Warren Commission?
| A I am sure I did.
My own personal ticklers, because I do that after
I check the report and make sure the dates are right, and so
| forth.
HONER REPORTING (1. INC
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0 Mr. Frazier goes on here, and he says, referring
to you, "Submitted his report to me and I prepared the formal
report of the entire examination.”
Now, what report of yours is Mr. Frazier referring
to?
A. My work sheet.
0 He is talking about your work sheet, not a report.
That's a misnomer.
When he says he prepared the formal report of the
entire examination, what is he referring to?

A As I told you, Frazier, in the normal course of

business, Frazier is responsible for the evidence when it
comes in and responsible for that evidence until it goes

out.

|
|
Now, when he gives me this evidence to analyze, I i
have a responsibility to get that back to him, and I might i
be one of three other examiners. :
He might, for example, have a piece of hair and he
gives it to a hair examiner. He might have some sédl and
gives it to a soll man.

When the things come back in, he is responsible to

get the report out.

MR. LESAR: I want to show you a copy of another
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document which I would like the reporter to put in as
next exhibit.
(The document referred
marked Gallagher Exhib
for identification.)
BY MR. LESAR:
0 I want to show you a report dated November 2
to Mr. Jdesse E. Curry, Chief of Dallas Police.
A That is Gallagher Exhibit 5.
‘0 All right.
Are you familiar with that report; do you r
having seen that report before?
A Yes.
Q Do you recall who made that report?
A Frazier made it.
0 Is that the only report by Mr. Frazier that
saw?
A I think it was after this that I left for Oa
Ridge, right after this, to the best of my recollectio
0 The date of this is November 23.
A The assassination was on the 22nd.
Q Yes.

A Yes.

g S T TR e e R
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Q Now, in view of the fact that this report is dated

86

a day after the President's assassination, could this be

what Mr. Frazier is referring to here when he says he prepared

the formal report of the entire examination?
A That's it.
Q This is the entire examination?
A To that date, ves.
Qo Was there another examination later that he
prepared a report on?
A I imagine there was.
It probably went to the chief.
The best one to ask that is Frazier.

Q I was going to get to this question of, do you

recall that the laboratory reports were generally sent to

the Dallas Field Office?

A Frazier would be the one to ask that, becnuse, as

I say, he was the one responsible for getting out the reports

and contributing editors were the people who did the

auxiliary examinations.

0 In general, with respect to FBI reports, where are

copies filed; to whom are they submitted and where filed?

A Normally the reports are returned to the contributor

If the Dallas office sent in some specimens, I

i
|
|
|
!
!
|
|
|
1
|
|
i
|
|
|
|
|

!
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imagine they would get a report back.

assassination of President Kennedy. It goes to the Chief of

Police, Dallas, Texas.

tion at that time.

Q0

A

o

ordinarily go to the communications division? E

A
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In this particular case, this is a report on the

The reason, he was responsible for the investiga-

Would the Dallas Field Office also get a copy?
I really don't know on that.

How about -~ would copies of laboratory reports

Administratively, T don't know how this particular f
|

thing was set up; I really don't know.

A copy of the report goes someplace so it can be

recovered if someone wants it for testimony.

0

When do you recall --

What's your first recollection of someone asking

for copies of the reports of the spectrographic analysis?

to your attention?

A

Do you have any recollection when the first came

After the Freedom of Information Act was passed.
I don't know.
I think that precipitated a lot of requests.

How about with respect to neutron activation analysis?

PR T —
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A I don't know.
0 Who made you aware that a request was being made?
A Of what?
Q For copies of the spectrographic and NAA tests?
A I think you did.
Q I dide
A Somebody -- I don't know who it was -- somebody
wanted all the copies of the neutron activation analysis
tests.
Q How did he contact you?
A I really don't remember.
I thought it was you.
Q Did he contact you telephonically or by mail, or
how?
A I don't even remember when it happened.
I thought it was you and you contacted me
telephonically.

MR. LESAR: For the record, no, I did not.

BY MR. LESAR:

Q

Who first --

Do you recall any official from any government

agency contacting you about Mr. Weisberg's requests for

spectrographic analysis?

5 e e e R M ML P R P 8 8 R
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Any official, FBI, Department of Justice --
A I don't recall that.
Q Anyone from the Atomic Energy Commission or its

successor?

A I think somebody from the Atomic Energy Commission -+

I had a casual acquaintance there -- said there was an
inquiry.
Q Do you recall what you informed him?
A What I informed him? E
!

With respect to what tests had been made.

)

No, I don't recall what I told him.

I know if it was early in the game, if somebody
was inquisitive, I told them there was no comment, at the
time the data was being taken.

0 I am talking about, say, the fall of 1974.

A I have no way of knowing.

This doesn't strike me of being of paramount
significance, and I don't remember.

Q I am curious why you told the Atomic Energy Commission,
one of their representatives, that the only neutron activation
analyses that had been conducted were on the paraffin casts.

A I certainly would have no way of knowing who I

talked to in that regard, and I certainly would have to reason:
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‘ to hide anything.

The question was probably asked, what reports went
to committee, or something like that. I probably said the
paraffin casts.

I don't recall talking to anybody and deliberately
withholding the fact that lead was analyzed.

Q Are you aware of --

s

Do you have any knowledge of any documents, memoran-
dum, notes, reports, films or photographs which have been

removed from the FBI headquarters with respect to President

Kennedy's assassination?
H A I think everything was brought over to the Archives.
Is that what you mean?

I 0 Do you have knowledge of any agents taking any
things home?

A I am certain nobody would do that.

Q Do you ever hear of any agents taking a copy of the
zapruder film out and taking it home?

A. No.

Absolutely no.

| I never saw it except on TV myself.
The question was labored for quite a while on

specimen Q-3 and why I didn't analyze 1Es
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I think the answer is very clear heré. 0-3 data
is represented in this chart, and the reason Q-3 is not
analyzed, the background count was 462 counts. The net
count from the specimen was 463.

One additional count is a fact not worth remember-
ing, but it's in here.

0 Is it a fact worth makipg a report on?

A As I say, I don't know whether or not a report was
made on this or not.

Q éhould there not be a laboratory work sheet for

|| that specimen?

A It is here.

{ Q Is that spectrographic or NAA?
A This is NAA.
0 All the other specimens you have indicated the tim

you put it in the activator and how long it was in there

and numbers representing the results.
A Yes.
This doesn't because there is no data. It is just

background.

Q Are you aware that we have been told by the FBI

under ocath that this was not tested?

E
l A What?
|
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H Q Q~-3.
A I just was of the opinion of that myself; you almost

talked me into this myself.

It was probably an honest mistake just like I made

previous to this.

Q Why didn't you do with respect to Q-3 what you did

to 0-15, a sheet on which is reflected the time it was put

|| on the reactor?

[ A This is probably an oversight on my part, evidently.
| It could be an oversight on my part, or it might
be on another sheet of paper that I didn't put if down in
i this form.

Q There would have been print-out an it, wouldn't

there?

A Probably.

0 On each of these specimens, would there not?
| A Probably yes, unless they were judged to be worth-
less and not kept.
} The data is here, and it just indicates there is
v no data available for any judgments.
‘ Q Why not?

Is that a customary practice?

A I told you, with the coin -- if T give you a little
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corner of the coin and I ask you whether it is a quarter or
a dime, what are you going to tell me?

Q It would seem to me that if you subject a specimen
to nettron activation analysis and there are no results
that you would write out "no results obtainable,” would you
not?

A When yoﬁ do your neutron activation analysis, you
write down "no results obtainable."

I know what I am talking about and what I am
doing. i
0 How would anybody else know?
Suppose this case came to trial --

A Nobody else could testify from my notes; certainly
you wouldn't want somebody taking my notes and testifying
against you who didn't do the work.

0. How about the Warren Commission?

A I think if anybody is going to testify against a
tobacco-chewing American, he should be faced by the man who
did the work.

0 Why didn't you testify to the Warren Commission
about the spectrographic and neutron activation analysis?

A Because I wasn't asked.

Qo Somebody was asked, weren't they?
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A I was not asked.

That's the only thing I can testify to.
0 Mr. Frazier said that,
A I have no way of knowing why I wasn't asked.
I certainly didn't make any inquiries.

0 You were aware that Mr.

spectrographic analysis?

A I saw it in print.

Q Were you aware at the
was going to testify about it?

A No, I wasn't aware --
going to testify.

He didn't come in and

today."

0 He didn't tell you he
spectrographic analysis?

A I don't think he knew

94

as I recall, to save time.

Frazier testified about the

time he testified that he

I wasn't even aware he was

say, "I am going in to testify'

would be testifying about

himself.

o] How did he know what to testify to if he didn't

consult with you?

A Strictly what was in the laboratory results.

Q You did testify before the Warren Commission at the

very tail end of the proceeding if I recall.

A I gave a deposition; yes, I did.

N
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Q Did you testify at all about spectrographic analysis?
A No, I did not.
) Why not.
A I was asked to testify on the paraffin lifts, and
I answered the questions.
0. Who asked you?
Someone from the Warren Commission and not from the

FBI?

A I gave a deposition associated with the Warren
Commission, but I certainly can't remember his name.

Q You were asked to testify about neutron activation !
analysis, were you not?

A That's what I was asked about, yes.

Q You didn't testify about neutron activation analysis
about the fragments?

A I didn't think there was anything that contributed
any more to the bullet examination than the spectrographic
showed.

o I have here a tahle of some results.

I would like you to look at it and tell me what it
is.
I think there is another page of it here. This

goes with it.

R T S T S Y P T
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‘i A The standard deviation formula is on this paper
here, if you have looked at it.
Let the record reflect it is on this --
What were you going to call it?
MR. LESAR: Let's mark it as another exhibit.
(The document referred to was
marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 6

for identification.)

1 BY MR. LESAR:
? 0 Now, how would you describe what you are looking
at now?

A Where is the first page?

0 Here are the additional pages.

I want to hold back the covering letter for a
| second and give you the rest of it. I want to refer back to
that in a minute.
How would you characterize what you have there?

A I think it's just an orderly presentation of the
i data in that blue folder.
‘ I think if you would have given me this first it
I

would have been easier.

Q This is neutron activation analysis?

A On leads.
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!! Q0 On leads only; is that correct, on leads only?
A On the lead material constituting the various
specimens here.
Q Does it include anything with copper?
A No, it does not include anything with copper.
Q Did you make a similar tabulation for items of

evidence which were copper?

A No, I did not.

Q Any reason why not?

A Becnusé I didn't think I could clean them up

Il sufficiently.

Q The covering letter to which these are attached

is a letter dated July, I believe, 6, 1964, from Mr. Jevons

. to Mr. Conrad; and it indicates that, "As previously reported
to the Commission, certain small lead metal fragments
uncovered in connection with this matter were analyzed
spectrographically to determine whether they could be
associated with one or more of the larger bullet fragments
and no significant differences were found within the

% sensitivity of the spectrographic method.

H "Because of the higher sensitivity of neutron

ﬁ activation analysis certain of the small lead fragments were

subjected to neutron activation analyses and comparisions
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i; with the larger bullet fragments. While minor variations in
composition were found by this method, thesé?ﬁere not
considered sufficient to permit positively differentiatinq
among the larger bullet fragments and thus p&fitively
determining from which of the larger bullet féagments any
small lead fragment may have come."

This speaks of variations in the composition.

What variations did you notice?

A I think this chart illustrates the variations.

‘I Q What elements have the largest variations?
;! A The element that specifically -- we were hoping
Li we would get some exotic elements.
[ Q By "exotic" --
: A Rare earth, promethium, some rare earths which have
| a very high cross section for thermo-neutron capture and are
very sensitive by this test.
Same way with gold.
1 We were hoping that some one of these exotic
J‘ elements would show up that we could put a handle on this
i thing.
1 We didn't see any of these exotic elements, so we
| just zeroed in on lead and silver.

' Copper was a coating material, and copper was too
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! hard -- we coulln't be sure we had cleaned out all the copper.

We didn't want to go on to copper even if we got

data because we weren't sure the sample we had was of

heterogeneous contents.

This is the antimony determinations here.

We did several different mins on these samples.

Do you notice any of the variations between samples

higher than you would normally expect from samples
from the same specimen?

i 4 expébt what I get.

I don't anticipate what my data is going to be.

Let me phrase it this way, do you evaluate any of

| those results obtained as ruling out the possibility that

one sample is of the same source as another?

I A

report to

A

0

A

I can't change one single thought that's in that
Rankin which I labored over.

Ypu labored over the report?

The letter.

This is your letter?

To Rankin.

This is not to Rankin but from Mr. Jevons to

Mr. Conrad.

It's essentially the same.

b e e
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1} You did the draft of it?
A The notions are essentially mine.
{ Q Mr. Jevons had something written from you that he
picked up and put in this?
A I don't know.
He called me in and said, "There is a stenographer

here. What are you going to tell her?"

and I would dictate after considerable reflection. .
i

Q You say you labored over it and reflected over it.

A I wanted it to be understood and as clear as I could;
make it so there would be no hemming and hawing about it 10 |
years later. a
, Q Did you write something out?

A I don't recall.

I probably had this in my hands, stuff written out
and scribbled over.

I don't know. .

Or I probably dictated to her and asked her to read

Il it back and scrap it, this way.

|
w I know it wasn't the first draft that satisfied

' Q Would it take a period of days, perhaps?

A It took many and many a day to get the data.
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I was living with it for so long that I wanted it to

be understood.

0. You say in it -- I note it is very carefully worded +-

you say, "While minor variations in composition were found
by this method, these were not considered sufficient to
permit positively differentiating among the larger bullet

fragments and thus positively determining from which of the

larger bullet fragments any given small lead fragment may !
have come."

What my question is, how much of a differentiation
would you have had to have in order to come to a conclusion
that eliminated any two specimens as being from the same
source?

A As I say, if I found one particular specimen to
consistently come up with some exotic element which was not
revealed in any of the other specimens, I think the answer
would be obvious; I could throw that specimen out.

Hoﬁaver, I would like to have a two or three time
variation; I would like it to be several times greater than
the standard deviation.

0 What is the standard deviation with respeét to
antimony?

A This is the statistical approach to the stuff.

RS—



101
hat I wanted it to

carefully worded -4-
ion were found |
Eficient to
larger bullet
m which of the

fragment may ;

differentiation
2 a conclusion

>m the same

specimen to
which was not

k the answer

out.
or three time

greater than
‘espect to

:he stuff,

102

I brushed up on it for the report here, but I am
:y as the devil on it now.
What was your question?
0 My question is, what is the standard deviation with
pect to the antimony?
A 17.48, in 29.63, on 0-2, Q-4 and 0Q-5, 13.52, Q-9,
14, 0-1, illegible.
Q-1 is illegible on the Xeroxing.
Q-14 is 20.87.
Q Given those standard deviations and those results,
2 there any which indicate that they come from a different
urce or could come from a different source?
A I think this chart illustrates what I am talking
wut very much.
Here are the different antimony -- not antimony --
1e value of antimony is not represented by a number, plus
r minua, or ability to measure.

This is what we have got here. The glements are

laced in there. If you drew a line through there, you couldnft

/ay any of them were much below the line which is what I would

jave had to have to eliminate one.

Q Would you pick the smallest and largest numbers

in terms of antimony?

L
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A Smallest and largest numbers with respect to
antimony.
749 parts per million.
Q For which specimen?
A Exucse me, 697 parts per million.
0} For which specimen?
A For Q-1, 697 parts per million.
Then the other one was 534.
Q Now, given the standard deviations --

534 was for which specimen?

A Q-2.
| Q Given the standard deviations for those, can you
eliminate those two as having come from the same source?

A No.

I think I have put it down in that report as clearly |

J as I can. i
| I cannot do it from this data. |
Q I don't think your report addresses the problem of

any other source. Your report --

make the standard deviation, again, for Q-1; what

did you say that was?
i A standard deviation is 17.48.

& Q For the other? o

i
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A wWhat other?

Q The 534.

A 29.63.

Now, that's not parts per million. Those are

counts.

Q Given those figures, can you tell me at what point
you would be willing to say that the parts per million figures
would eliminate the possiHlity that they could have come from

the same source?

A Well, if T had, for example, antimony determination |
here that was --

For example, if it were 10 times bigger or 10 times !
smaller, certainly I would throw that out.

o You are saying that if you have antimony of 5000
on Q-1, you would then throw out the other specimen we have !
been dealing with? |

A with not too big a bounce on it, I would throw
it out.

Q I don't understand.

A I have repeated samples run here, from the same
specimen.

If the samples look real homogenous and then there

ig a difference of 500 to 5000 parts per million of antimony,
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I would look for two different sources.
0 But it would have to be how many times greater?
n I am giving you an example.

I have to evaluate each one of these on their
merit, knowing what the samples look like, how homogenous
they are, and everything else.

Q Essentially you are saying it is very subjective.

A It is very objective to anybody who is in the business.

It's just that I am not elogquent enough to get

it across.

1 This is a competent elements study here done
| statistically. I brushed up on this specifically for this.
[ I think it's pretty revealing to anybody that's |
| into statistics and wants to delve into that.
I Q The result of it was that you concluded that you i
f cannot establish that any two of the samples tested are from 1
|| different sources?

A I think that not only I, but anybody that took this
data and looked at it would come to the same judgment.

Q I think you testified earlier that the spectrographic

|
t

|

l

\

|

L

‘ analysis made on the curbstone showed all that was possible --
} A If I testified that, I want to correct it right

1

now.
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explanation for not selecting the curbstone for neutron

activation analysis?

A
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I did not make the examination on the curbstone.

I don't want to comment on any of the results which

What was your explanation -- do you recall your

It was reported to me that a spectrographic examina-

tion had been done. |

Q

A

Who made the report?

It was either Heilman, Heidenberger or Edwards,

special agent examiners in the unit.

Q

A

0

A

on it.

curbstone?

Did you see the report?
You showed it to me here today.
I showed you --

And you asked me to make a handwriting anlaysis

I did ask whether or not it was your writing.

Is that all the spectrographic analysis of the

That's it, apparently.
There were no quantitative figures for it?

How can you get quantitative fiqures from something

like that?

T T T T T T T T s
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He is lucky to find whatever he found there.
The question was asked, is it a bullet mark?
He said it could be because he found lead and
antimony.
Q Did you ever see a microscopic examination of the
curbstone made by anyone?
Do you recall that?
A I recall seeing the curbstone.
Q I am asking about the report on the microscopic
examination of it.
A It just goes without saying that a microscopic
examination -- this has been the procedure for 30 years in

the FBI.

We don't say, "Dear contributor, we subjected your

evidence to a microscopic examination; we fondled the outside |

of the bullet and measured the outside of it."

Q The reason I was asking is because we don't have

ie.
A You wouldn't have it on 99 and 44/100 percent of
the examinations done in the spectrographic examinations.-
Q I am talking about the microscopic examination.

A The fellow would say, "I found a smear and analyzed

g "
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tion case, pictures were taken.
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A,
Q

A

would contribute nothing to the understanding of what this
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He wouldn't say, "I subjected this to a microscopic

Would you take microscopic pictures of it?

I think all the specimens in the Kennedy assassina-

You are talking about micrscopic pictures?
No.
Would you do it in this case?

No, because it would make very dull reading. It

man was facing, a gray smear on something, highly unintelli-

gible to anybody who didn't look through the microscope

himself.

Q

How many elements -- you take the smear on the

curbgtone, and it's said to be three-quarters of am inch by

an inch.

How many elements would you expect to find by

means of spectrographic analysis?

A

I would expect to find all that are there within

the range of an emission spectrographic examination.

Q

Let me ask you one final question. I think that's

probably it.

What variation would you consider significant in

Y A T e e Ry
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testing primer residues?
A In primer residues, you have -- in the primer

itself is barium nitrate and antimony sulfide.

When the primer is discharged, the lead is stiffen-
ing; it should be.

Actually, when a weapon is fired, the solid
residues that are deposited on the shooter's hands contain
antimony, barium and lead.

You can't see lead by neutron activation analysis

because it is one of the elements you don't activate in a
reactor that has a decay constant long enough to measure.
You go after antimony and barium. |
Qur principle has been to compare the amount of
antimony and barium on one hand -- our principle now -- with
the antimony and barium on the other hand to see if there is
an increase in the antimony and barium on the shooting hand
oyer the nonshooting hand or whether there is an amount of
antimony and barium which represents an amount that's
excessive as far as to a tobacco-chewing American is concerned.
Q Would you compare --
You also test for the residues in the rifle barrel?
A In the rifle shedl.

Here again, we analyze the primer resudues in the
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shell because we were hoping that, again, we would find an
exotic, some element, rare earth, some element which would
really highlight this particular primer residue as being
characteristic in itself.

Actually, the subject in this particular case,
Oswald, had fired a revolver allegedly after he hﬁd fired a
rifle.

If we could distinguish between the primer residues
of the revolver and the rifle, we would have been a couple
of steps in advance.

Q Let me ask you, how much variation between the

amount of antimony or barium in the residue from the pistol you
would have to have between that and the shell residue in order
to establish that the sources were different? |

A The variation in the antimony and barium would not
give us that amount of intelligence -- the amount of variation:
in the antimony and barium that you find as residue on a hand
and you take out of a shell, this is not entirely significant
or not very significant because when that gun is discharged, E
that's an extremely violent act, and there is nothing in the
world that tells us that the antimony and barium is going to |
be homogenously mixed on the shooter's hand.

Qo You have two different rifle shells.
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How much variation in antimony or barium do you have
to have before you establish that there is a different
source?

MR. RYAN: I will have to object.

I don't know that you have connected up that ques-

tion with the specific facts or test results in this case.

MR. LESAR: The question relates whether we have beel

given any reports on comparisons made between different shells
testified to in this case.
BY MR. LESAR:
Q Let me rephrase the guestion this way:
How mnch variation would you have to find in any

two rifle shells before you would find it noteworthy?

A In the primer residue?
Q Yes.
A I don't know.

You see, the primer shells have got writing on the
bottom of them, the cartridge cases.
You can tell.
If I gave you a three-cent stamp, you wouldn't ask
me to analyze it, I think.
Q Suppose you are trying to determine whether or not

the ammunition in that shell was reloaded or original

seppereTraeTs ety
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ammunition?

A If it is reloaded ammunition?

Q Yes.

A Reloaded --

o Western --

A Shells?

Q Yes.

A You would have to ask the fire arms examiner. He
could tell that.

I don't know. I am not an expert in that field.

v Let's get back again to, what variation would you

!
i have to find in order to make the determination?
|
| A I have no judgment on that.

|

1

Q Suppose the variation was double?

i A I have no judgment oﬁ that on residue.

I Q Did you make any determinations of that sort with
| respect to President Kennedy's assassination?

i A I don't recall,

I made primer residue examination when I was doing

Q How about for other purposes, such as the one I

|

|

i the paraffin 1ifts to find out if there were any exotics.

|

i suggested, determining whether or not the ammunition had been

reloaded?

Y
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A The state of the art wouldn't allow you, when we
were doing this examination, to make any conclusions from
the residues of the primer.

QA If you found a 30 percent variation in the primer -

A I don't answer hypothetical questions.

MR. LESAR: I think you have.

MR. WEISBERG: Why not for another purpose, when
you have test results from examination of the shells, not
the paraffin lifts, statistically significantly different
in these same elements, why not consider something besides
the paraffin tésts when you are conducting this.kind of an
investigation?

We have these reports of this variation in the
primer.

THE WITNESS: You say they are statistically
significant. You want to put that in quotes.

MR. WEISBERG: That's why I asked ypu the question.

THE WITNESS: There is nothing in the state of the
art at the time we were doing this which would enable us to
assoclate a particular source with another particular source

MR. WEISBERG: That wasn't what I was saying, sir.

There was a difference of about 30 percent between

the reports you got from testing two different shells.
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THE WITNESS: For primer residues?

MR. WEISBERG: I am saying that's not the same as
comparing it with the lifts.

All T am asking, isn't a 30 percent difference,
test results from the shells themselves, something that
should be commented upon in a report?

THE WITNESS: Obviously I didn't think so or I
would have done it.

MR. WEISBERG: You may have done it without us
getting it. ]

MR. LESAR: Our purpose is to find out whether or
not there are records the government has and we have not

received.

MR. WEISBERG: Or have not been found.

MR. LESAR: The purpose has been simply to determine

what records were created and what exists and where they
might be so we have some way of assessing what we asked for;
and it's very difficult -- a very difficult way in which to
proceed.

That's what we have been attempting to do.

I think I am concluded with the deposition.

TN



| EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANTS

BY MR. RYAN:

Q Could you please describe the state of the art of
neutron activation analysis in 1964 briefly?

A It was very voung at that time. The equipment was

relatively medieval.

| It was not the multichannel analyzers with the
| automatic print-outs you have today and the read-out equip-
ment where you generate your data was extremely complex and
the record—keepiﬁg on the part of the people doing the
examination was voluminous.

Today that would all be printed out in computer-
like form.

Then on top of that, as far as the work insofar as
eriminalistics is concerned, there was a few men leading in
the field, Dr. Vincent Guinn, San Diego, for example. There
ware a few more down at Oak Ridge.

There were very few universities with low power
reactors.

| It was really in its infanecy.

MR. LESAR: 1In 1963, 1964, compared with
spectrographic analysis, what was the comparative sensitivity
between the two?
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THE WITNESS: For specific elements, it had no
peers, for gold, some of the rare earths, to determine
arsenic in some cases, it had no peer in my estimation,
antimony or barium in primer residues.

MR. LESAR: Would it have been on the order of 10
times more sensitive than spectorgraphic analysis?

THE WITNESS: In some cases 1000 times more
sensitive.

MR. LESAR: Just to pin it down to the things we

have been talking about and the instances with which vour

examinations are concerned, how much more sensitive would it

have been for antimony, for silver, for barium? ,
THE WITNESS: Probably two-fold more sensitive

but more dependable guantitatively.

BY MR. RYAN:

0. Could you describe the physical circumstances on
copying down the data as the samples were going into the
reactor?

A The time the samples went into the reactor, time out,

time it was counted, the length of time, had to be recorded.
All this had to be done by myself there while they were
putting stuff in and taking it out.

MR. LESAR: Does that mean there was no one who
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verified what you wrote down; you wrote down everything
yourself; you wrote down the result yourself?
THE WITNESS: I did most of that, yes.

MR. LESAR: From a print-out?

THE WITNESS: In many cases, the chap running the

pneumatic tubes would have a print-out, and he would put that

on the print-out and I would transpose the time he started
counting so I could make calculations that night; and so
there was actually a cross check on it.

We checked each other's work as best we could.

MR. LESAR: Did he keep any separate notes?

THE WITNESS: No.

No notes at all that he was entitled to keep.

That was one of the stipulations; we didn't want
this thing to go all over Oak Ridge until we got data and
the Commission knew about it.

That's one of the reasons --

You were talking about Vince Guinn.

He was a good friend of ours and very supportive
every way. He was selling atomic reactors.

It would be a lot more easy for a man trying to
sell reactors to say we were using his facilitv.

I think that's understandable if you know the

in
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MR. LESAR: What sort of clock did you use to clock

re a clock connected to the reactor?

How do you determine the time it goes in and goes

THE WITNESS: There is a big second clock and it's

ared automatically.
MR. LESAR: Okay.
I think I am through if you are through.
MR. RYAN: I have no further questions.

(Whereupon, at 3:45 p.m., the taking of the

sition was ended.)

A
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I CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT

|

1

' I have read the foregoing 118 pages which contain l
a correct transcript of the answers made by me to the questionJ

therein recorded. L

! Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

Notary Public

My commission expires .
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CERTIFICATE OF MOTARY PUBLIC

I, Sandra S. Morgan, the officer before whom the
foregoing deposition was taken, do hereby certify that the
witness whose testimony appears in the foregoing deposition

was duly sworn by me; that the testimony of said witness

was taken by me stenographically and thereafter reduced to |
typewriting by me; that said deposition is a true record of
the testimony given by said witness; that I am neither
counsel for, related to, nor employed by any of the parties
to the action in which this deposition was taken; and, furtheri
that I am not a relative or employee of any attorney or
counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor financially or
otherwise interested in the outcome of the action.

T b . PV

Notary Public in and for
the District of Columbia

My commission expires October 14, 1981.
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UNITED STATES DEPANTMENT OF JVETICL
FEDERAL DURLAL OF INWESTICATION
WASEILAGTO 23, D
orch 106, iSes

By Couzder Zervlce

ilouorable J. Lee Rankin
General Counsel

vl President’s Commlesion
100 Maryland Avenue, Northeast
Washington, D. C. 20002

Dear Lir. Rankin:

purling the course of dipcunsion ¢i. , 2
sttivation snalyses between lr. lezlvin Tducorbhes el jom
staff and Special Agent John F. CGullasher of % ¢ ] a7eau
un March 16, 1964, Mr. Eibenberpg requestcd 7% T lending
information:

1, What are some items in common usape vwhich

3.

contain barium? Some items that moj zlude
barium are: grease, ceramlcs, plasz, paint,
printing ink, paper, rubber, plasticc,
loather, cloth, pyrotechnics, oilcloth and
linoleum, storesge batterles, mnlches aod
cosmetlics. ]

What are some items in common usape which
contain antlmony? Oome items that miy
include nntimony are: matches, iype meinl,
lecad alloys, paints and laocgquers, pipments
for oil mnd water colore, flameprool
textiles, storapge batteries, pyrotecknica,
rubber, pharmaceutical preparation: andd
cnlico.

Yihat are some items 1n common usage Wiicl
contain both barium and antimony? Bariuz
gnd ontimony may be fouad in the followiag
1icme: printed paper nnd cloth, palai,
gterage batterles, @ubber and mateacs
pyrotochnics aud pousibly other itezu.
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~--ruzble J. Leo Rankin

4. Wgn}d,pqgt;gg_pggivati.u pnalyses show 1f
o bullet possed throufh”tEe hole in the
ironk oi President 1. medy's shirt near
ihe collar buiton nro: nod nlso 1Y & _
bulilae pasted througn the material of his

tiep HNeutiron activation is n censitive
analytical technlque to determine elements i
present in a substance. Durling the course ;
of the upectrographic oxaaninatlions previously
conducted of the fabric surrounding the

Lole in the front of the shirt, including

the tie, no copper was found in excess of

that precent olscwhere 1n undamaged oreas

of the shirt and tie. Therefore, no copper

was Tound which could be attributed to

projectile fragments.

It is not felt that the increased sensltivity
5° neutron nctivation analyses would contribute substantially
+5 the understanding of the origin of this hole and frayed'

Arofs
Bincerely yours,

[ 2l geuto

= G -

Gatcacner Lxinmr N 1— Continued
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